OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD

A meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Board was held on 24 September 2014.

PRESENT: Councillors N J Walker (Chair): T Mawston (Vice-Chair): E Drvden, F McIntvre, P

Purvis, P Sharrocks, J A Walker, M B Williams and

PRESENT BY INVITATION:

Councillor M Carr - Executive Member for The Change Programme

OFFICERS: C Breheny, B Carr and A Crawford

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE Councillor J G Cole, Councillor C Hobson, Councillor P Sanderson, Councillor M Thompson..

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS

There were no Declarations of Interest made at this point of the meeting.

14/38 MINUTES - OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD - 19 AUGUST 2014

The minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Board held on 19 August 2014 were submitted and approved as a correct record.

14/39 ATTENDANCE OF EXECUTIVE MEMBER - EXECUTIVE MEMBER FOR THE CHANGE PROGRAMME

The Scrutiny Support Officer advised that a schedule had been prepared for arrangements for individual Members of the Executive to attend meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Board to provide updates on their respective work in terms of their aims, aspirations, objectives, priorities and any emerging issues or pressures. The process was part of the scrutiny arrangements of holding the Executive to account and also provided the opportunity for the Board to identify or highlight any issues of concern or difficulty.

The Chair welcomed Councillor Carr, the Executive Member for The Change Programme to the meeting and invited him to provide the Board with an update in respect of any progress that had been made in relation to the Change Programme.

The Board was advised that the Executive had approved a report which set out the principles and approach to a Change Programme to meet the challenges presented by unprecedented and ongoing financial reductions in resource level over the next few years whilst retaining focus on leading the delivery of the future vision for Middlesbrough.

The first phase of the Change Programme was focused on development and producing an outline business case which involved looking at how the Council currently operated, how it delivered services and whether the Council needed to deliver all of the functions that it currently delivered. The process involved looking at whether the Council was the correct organisation to deliver a particular service and looking at the issue of outsourcing services and alternative service delivery models.

As part of the Change Programme process it was discovered that the bureaucracy and management of the Council had not changed for many years and a decision was made to review all areas of the Council and look at working practices within each area. The Change Programme had examined 58 separate areas of activity and reduced it to 40 by either merging activities or reducing provision. This exercise resulted in proposals for savings of £40m of which half had been implemented in 2014/15 and the remainder were expected to be implemented in 2015/16.

The Board was advised that Phase 2, the delivery phase of the Change Programme had commenced with a restructuring of Senior Management. Each of the three Executive Directors had three Assistant Directors directly reporting to them. Each of the nine Assistant Directors

had been assigned specific service outcomes aligned with the key priorities of the overall strategy of the Council and they were expected to deliver change in respect of their individual outcomes. It was highlighted that following the Senior Management Review, the Senior Management Structure had reduced by 40%.

The Board was advised that political leadership was an important part of the Change Programme as politicians had a level of accountability that they were required to exercise and the scrutiny procedures were an important part of this process. The Council needed to look at maximising income and the Board was advised that a report was due to be submitted to Executive which looked at the issues of income generation and appropriate service delivery models.

The Executive Member of the Change Programme highlighted that as part of the Change Programme the following services/issues had been examined:-

- Adult Social Care assessment process;
- 0 19 service:
- Community hubs and libraries
- Council buildings
- Support Services;
- Finance/Payroll;
- Cashless Council;
- Revenues and benefits;
- Balanced Scorecards;
- IT strategy;
- Community Learning.

In terms of Community Learning, the Council was investigating the possibility of developing a social enterprise company and looking at how it could operate to reduce costs. A Member commented that the Change Programme was about defining a clear specification and choosing the right level of service for the least cost. The Board was advised that it was up to Members to provide political direction in terms of the range of services the Council provided.

A key part of the approach to the Change Programme was continuing to work closely with and in a more collaborative way with other local authorities, public agencies. Negotiations with Mouchel Services regarding a possible extension to the current contract were ongoing.

A Member queried whether the effect on front line services was a consideration of the Change Programme and whether the delivery phase was on target and if unions were on board with the process. The Board was advised that the delivery phase was on target; the unions had worked well with the Council throughout the process and the Council had made a commitment to providing a living wage.

As part of the Change Programme any chargeable services provided by the Council were being examined to check if the charges being levied were economically viable for that service to operate. The Council was also looking at ways of generating income. The Board was advised that although the cost of a service was one of the primary factors, the issue of social value e.g. supporting employment or the effect on vulnerable people was also considered when assessing services.

The Board was advised that the Director of Public Health had advised that there was a possibility that the authority might suffer a 40% reduction in its public health grant in 2016. In 2013, the Government had announced a change in the methodology for calculating the Public Health grant by basing it on the number of older people. Older people were living longer generally but particularly in affluent areas. The Board was advised that this was one of the variables that would be examined in 2016/17. The Board was advised that there would be a number of savings in next years' budget based on the NHS funding certain functions.

The Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Board advised that scrutiny panels had been requested to consider how they could be involved in, and influence, the Council's Change Programme. In accordance with the above, the Overview and Scrutiny Board and scrutiny panel Members

had met with the Executive Director for Commercial and Corporate Services with regard to this issue. A list of proposed topics suggested by the Executive Director for Commercial and Corporate Services which would link into the Change Programme had been drawn up in respect of each of the Panels.

The Executive Member for the Change Programme advised that the earlier that scrutiny was involved in the Change Programme process, the more influence it could have on outcomes. The Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Board advised that scrutiny panels were looking at topics that affected the Change Programme in tandem with other topics for investigation.

The Board was advised that a report had been drafted which provided an overview of how projects would be appraised and it would be useful for the Overview and Scrutiny Board to receive a copy of that report.

ORDERED as follows:-

1. That the Executive Member for the Change Programme be thanked for the information provided.

14/40 EXECUTIVE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

The Executive Office Manager submitted a report which identified the forthcoming issues to be considered by the Executive as outlined in Appendix A to the report.

The report provided the Overview and Scrutiny Board with the opportunity to consider whether any item contained within the Executive Forward Work Programme should be considered by the Board or referred to a Scrutiny Panel.

NOTED

14/41 EXECUTIVE FEEDBACK: DOG FOULING AND GRESHAM REGENERATION

The Executive Office Manager submitted a report with regard to the decisions of the Executive in relation to the Environment Scrutiny Panel's final report on Dog Fouling and the Economic Regeneration and Transport Scrutiny Panel's final report on Gresham Regeneration.

The Executive Office Manager submitted a report with regard to the decisions of the Executive in relation to the Environment Scrutiny Panel's final report on Dog Fouling and the Economic Regeneration and Transport Scrutiny Panel's final report on Gresham Regeneration.

In the absence of the Chair of Economic Regeneration and Transport Scrutiny Panel, the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Board had presented the report to the Executive with regard to Gresham Regeneration. The Board was advised that the Chair had expressed concern at the Executive meeting with regard to the proposal contained in the service area's Action Plan to develop an integrated Neighbourhood and Master plan for Gresham.

The Board was advised that as the Economic Regeneration and Transport Scrutiny Panel had recommended the development of two separate plans, the Chair of OSB would clarify the position concerning the points she had raised at the Executive meeting.

NOTED

14/42 SCRUTINY PANELS - PROGRESS REPORTS

A report of the Chair of each Scrutiny Panel was submitted which outlined progress on current activities.

 The Chair of Children, Families and Learning Scrutiny Panel advised that Edward Kunonga (Assistant Director of Improving Public Health and Director of Public Health) had attended the Panel on 17 September 2014 to provide an overview of Public Health's early help, prevention and intervention approaches to improving the health

- and well-being of children and young people in Middlesbrough. The Board was advised that school nurses were being introduced back into schools in 2015 and further information on this issue would be discussed at the next Panel meeting.
- The Chair of the Community Safety and Leisure Scrutiny Panel advised that the
 Action Plan prepared by the service area in repect of the Panel's topic of Sexual
 Exploitation of young children had been revised to include an update on the issues
 that had occurred in Rotherham. The Panel's final report in respect of its investigation
 into Alternative Delivery Models (ADM) for Sports and Leisure was due to be finalised.
- The Chair of Economic Regeneration and Transport Scrutiny Panel advised that the
 potential for income generation would be included within the terms of reference for the
 Panel's investigation into the topic of Wi-Fi Town.
- The Chair of Environment Scrutiny Panel advised that the schedule of site visits to open spaces was being finalised. It was suggested that, if possible and depending on the agreed format and schedule, the list of proposed site visits be circulated to relevant Ward Councillors.
- The Chair of Health Scrutiny Panel advised that a meeting was due to take place on 25 September to receive information regarding the Review of Alternative Provider Medical Services (APMS) in Middlesbrough.

NOTED

14/43 **CALL IN**

It was confirmed that no requests had been received to call-in a decision.

NOTED

14/44 ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Reference was made to a report which had been submitted to the Executive with regard to the Council's Draft Preventing Homelessness Strategy. The Executive had agreed that the prevalence of domestic violence as a cause of homelessness was a strategic concern within Middlesbrough and had recommended that the topic be considered as part of the scrutiny process.

The Chair suggested that the above topic be examined at a future meeting of the Board.

NOTED